
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA 

April 8, 2019 - 7:00 PM 

WINTERVILLE TOWN HALL ASSEMBLY ROOM 

I. CALL TO ORDER.

II. INVOCATION.

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.

IV. WELCOME.

V. APPROVAL OF AGENDA.

VI. RECOGNITION OF EMPLOYEES:

1. Tony Klontz, Recruitment, Retention and Member Development Officer – Fire-Rescue-EMS.
2. Spencer Albritton, Fire Engineer, Fire-Rescue-EMS.
3. Hunter Barrow, Fire Engineer – Fire-Rescue-EMS
4. Steven Cox, Fire Engineer – Fire-Rescue-EMS.
5. Jordan Craven, Fire Engineer – Fire-Rescue-EMS.
6. Frankie Lopez, Fire Engineer – Fire-Rescue-EMS.
7. Bryan Myers, Fire Engineer – Fire-Rescue-EMS
8. Justin Weber, Fire Engineer – Fire-Rescue-EMS.
9. Alex Yates, Fire Engineer – Fire-Rescue-EMS.
10. Alex Caldaro, Firefighter – Fire-Rescue-EMS
11. Taylor Moore, Firefighter – Fire-Rescue-EMS.
12. Cory Rayner, Firefighter – Fire-Rescue-EMS.
13. Robert Spence, Firefighter – Fire-Rescue-EMS.

VII. PROCLAMATIONS:

1. South Central High School 2018-2019 Men’s Basketball Team.
2. Pitt Community College 2018-2019 Men’s Basketball Team.

VIII. PUBLIC HEARINGS:

1. Brookstone Subdivision, Phase 1 – CUD Amendment.

IX. PUBLIC COMMENT: The Public Comment period of thirty minutes provides an opportunity for
residents to comment on any item included in the agenda or to address the Town Council on any other
matter related to the Town of Winterville. For an item included in the Public Hearing section of the
agenda, residents should address the Council at the time the Mayor invites public comment on the
item. No public comment may be made to the Council during the meeting, except during the Public
Comment period or as part of a Public Hearing. Individual speakers are limited to a maximum of three
minutes, and no more than three speakers may address the Council on a single matter. The Town
Council may elect to take no action on the matter addressed by a speaker, may schedule the matter for
further consideration at a future Council meeting, or may refer the matter to Town staff for disposition.
Copies of the Town Public Comment Policy are available in the rear of the Assembly Room.

1. Gary Whitehurst – Noise at Moose Lodge.



 

X. CONSENT AGENDA: The following items are considered routine in nature and will not be discussed by 
the Town Council unless a Councilman or citizen requests that an item be removed from the Consent 
Agenda for further discussion. The Mayor may allow citizens to address an item or ask questions. 

1. Council Meeting Minutes - Approval of the following: 
 February 11, 2019 Regular Meeting; 
 February 19, 2019 Electric Rate Workshop Meeting; and 
 March 11, 2019 Regular Meeting. 

2. Ange Plaza, Lot 22 Annexation – Set Public Hearing for May 13, 2019. 

3. Appropriation of Budgeted Salary Revenue to Capital Outlay and Contracted Services 
Purchases – Police Department. 

4. Sale of Surplus 1994 E-One Fire Engine to Johnston Community College. 

5. Budget Amendment 2018-2019-4. 

6. Set a Special Called Meeting to Conduct Town Manager’s Performance Review. 

XI. NEW BUSINESS: 

1. Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation – Amendment to Engineering Contract with Rivers & Associates. 

2. Pump Station Rehab – Authorization to Submit SRF Grant Application. 

3. 2019 Street Improvements Project Engineering Contract - Approval of Contract. 

4. 2019 NCLM Business Meeting - Elect Voting and Alternate Voting Delegates. 

5. General Records Retention and Disposition - Resolution. 

XII. OTHER AGENDA ITEMS: 

1. Electric Rates. (Councilman Moore). 

2. Need for Lights for AG Cox Baseball Field. (Councilman Moore). 

3. Grass cutting for vacant lots. (Councilman Moore). 

4. Speed limit signs: Church Street from Main Street to Cooper Street; Academy Street from Main 
Street to North Street; and Ange Street from Main Street to Cooper Street. (Councilman Moore). 

XIII. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS/FUTURE WORK SESSIONS. 

XIV. REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS: Update on Projects Currently Underway: 

 Minimum Housing/Code Enforcement (TLP) 
 Tar Road Widening Project – Electric Engineering/Relocation (RS) 
 New Electric Territory Engineering/Installation (RS) 
 Fork Swamp Greenway Project (EJ) 
 Multi-Purpose Building Site Plan (EJ) 
 Winterville Market/Town Common Plan (BW) 
 Winterville Land Use Plan (BJ) 
 Chapman Street Culvert - Nobel Canal Drainage Basin Study (TW) 
 2018 SRF Application (Sewer Rehabilitation) (TW) 
 Church Street Pump Station Rehabilitation (TW) 

XV. ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

1. Planning and Zoning Board Meeting – Monday, April 15, 2019 – 7:00 pm - Town Hall Assembly 
Room. 

2. Board of Adjustment Meeting – Tuesday, April 16, 2019 – 7:00 pm - Town Hall Assembly Room. 
3. Town Office closed on Friday, April 19, 2019 for Holiday. 

  

2



4. Town Council Budget Progress Meeting – Monday, April 29, 2019 – 5:30 pm – Town Hall
Executive Conference Room.

5. Market on the Square – starts Thursday, May 2, 2019 – 4:00 pm – 8:00 pm, Touch-A-Truck.
6. CityVision 2019 NCLM Annual Meeting – Tuesday, May 14, 2019 through Thursday, May 16,

2019 – Hickory, NC.

XVI. REPORTS FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY, MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL, AND TOWN
MANAGER.

XVII. CLOSED SESSION: NCGS § 143-318.11. (a)(3) To consult with an attorney employed or retained by
the public body in order to preserve the attorney-client privilege between the attorney and the public
body, which privilege is hereby acknowledged. General policy matters may not be discussed in a
closed session and nothing herein shall be construed to permit a public body to close a meeting that
otherwise would be open merely because an attorney employed or retained by the public body is a
participant. The public body may consider and give instructions to an attorney concerning the handling
or settlement of a claim, judicial action, mediation, arbitration, or administrative procedure. (Acquisition
of Property.)

XVIII. ADJOURN.

SPECIAL NOTICE: Anyone who needs an interpreter or special accommodations to participate in the meeting should 
notify the Town Clerk, Don Harvey at (252) 215-2344 at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the meeting. (Americans with 
Disabilities Act (ADA) 1991.) 

3



 

PROCLAMATION 
Honoring South Central High School 

2018-2019 Men’s Basketball Team 
 

WHEREAS, South Central High School is a viable part of, serves, and contributes to 
the Winterville Community; and 

WHEREAS, the Men’s Basketball Team completed a very successful season, winning 
the State 4A NCHSAA Basketball State Championship, for the first time in School history; 
and 

WHEREAS, the fans, volunteers, parents, coaches, and student athletes spent 
countless hours at practice, traveling to and from games, and supporting the Team; and 

WHEREAS, the Team had a record of 30 wins and 1 loss overall with 12 wins and 0 
losses in the Eastern Carolina 4A Conference; and 

WHEREAS, Day’ron Sharpe was named the Charlie Adams Most Valuable Player in 
the Championship game; and 

WHEREAS, Jahzeer Baker was tapped South Central’s Most Outstanding Player in 
the Championship game; and 

WHEREAS, Raquan Vann was the recipient of the 2019 North Carolina Farm Bureau 
Sportsmanship Award; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Winterville proudly supports and honors the efforts and 
accomplishments of the tremendous student athletes and coaches of the South Central High 
School 2018-2019 Men’s High School Basketball Team for their championship season and 
publicly thank and proclaim this outstanding accomplishment. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I do set my hand, and cause the seal of Winterville to be 
affixed this 8th day of April, 2019. 

 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

4



 

PROCLAMATION 
Honoring Pitt Community College 

2019 Men’s Basketball Team 
 

WHEREAS, Pitt Community College is a viable part of, serves, and contributes to the 
Winterville Community; and 

WHEREAS, the Team completed a very successful season; and 

WHEREAS, the fans, volunteers, parents, coaches, and student athletes spent countless 
hours at practice, traveling to and from games, and supporting the Team; and 

WHEREAS, a new School Record Single Season was set with 24 Wins; and 

WHEREAS, a new School Record Single Season Conference was set with 17 Wins; and 

WHEREAS, the Team was Region X DII Regular Season Champions; and 

WHEREAS, the Team appeared in the NJCAA DII National Tournament; and 

WHEREAS, Darrick Mullins was 2019 NJCAA DII Region X Coach of the Year; and 

WHEREAS, Ben Cox was 2019 NJCAA DII All Region X / First Team; and 

WHEREAS, Reginald Clark was 2019 NJCAA DII All Region X / Second Team; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Winterville proudly supports and honors the efforts and 
accomplishments of the tremendous student athletes and coaches of the Pitt Community College 
2019 Men’s Basketball Team for their successful season and publicly thank and proclaim this 
outstanding accomplishment. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I do set my hand, and cause the seal of Winterville to be affixed 
this 8th day of April, 2019. 

 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

5



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 
 

Meeting Date: April 8, 2019 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

 

Item Section: Public Hearings 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Brookstone, Phase 1 – CUD Amendment.  

Action Requested: Public Hearing and Council Direction. 

Attachments: Application, Map, Original Conditional Use Permit, Labels of Adjacent Property Owners. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 3/27/2019 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

 TC 03/27/2019  FD        TM 04/03/2019  Final 04/03/2019 

Supporting Documentation 

DR Horton is requesting to amend the following condition for the Conditional Use District for Brookstone 

Subdivision, Phase 1: 

 A minimum of twenty-five percent (25%) of the homes shall have brick veneer exteriors with the 

exception of gables, dormers, and other architectural features where non-veneer finishes may be 

preferable. 

The following condition would replace the above condition: 

 All homes shall have at least 25% stone or brick façade (front elevation). 

 

Process: 

 The Town Council authorized the issuance of the Conditional Use Permit on January 9th, 2006. 

 

 Planning & Zoning Board unanimously recommended approval (3/18/19).  

 

 Town Council will hold Public Hearing on the Request (4/8/19).  

 

 PH Notice published in the Daily Reflector on 3/27/19 and 4/3/19 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Hold Public Hearing. 

 

6



7

ZAnderson
Text Box
See Attached

ZAnderson
Text Box
10.57 ac



8



9



10



11



12



D&I Properties of NC LLC 
1338 Fox Hollow Drive 
Ayden, NC 28513 

 Jami L Moss 
James L Best 
3124 Streamside Ln 
Winterville, NC 28590 

 Odis W Joyner 
Lottie N Joyner 
3118 Streamside Ln 
Winterville, NC 28590 

Michael Louis Nenni, Sr. 
223 Durango Rod, Unit 6D 
Destin, FL 32541 

 Kenneth W Wilson 
Julie D Wilson 
3106 Streamside Ln 
Winterville, NC 28590 

 Jonathan Ambrose 
3109 Streamside Ln 
Winterville, NC 28590 

Vanessa Shackleford Daniels 
Jarvis M Daniels 
3117 Streamside Ln 
Winterville, NC 28590 

 Donald R King 
Sheila K King 
3131 Streamside Ln 
Winterville, NC 28590 

 Michael Reilly 
Shirley Reilly 
3151 Streamside Ln 
Winterville, NC 28590 

William Johnson 
Tracy Johnson 
3159 Streamside Ln 
Winterville, NC 28590 

 Kenneth Smith Properties, INC 
1588 NC 102 E 
Ayden, NC 28513 

  

     

     

     

     

     

     

13



14



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 
 

Meeting Date: April 8, 2019 

Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Council Meeting Minutes. 

Action Requested: Approval of DRAFT Minutes. 

Attachment: DRAFT Minutes of the Council Meetings listed below. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 3/27/2019 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

 TC: 3/27/2019  FD:   TM: 4/3/2019  Final: 4/3/2019 

Supporting Documentation 

Approval of the following set of Council Meeting Minutes: 

 February 11, 2019 Regular Council Meeting Minutes; and 

 February 19, 2019 Electric Rate Workshop Meeting Minutes; and 

 March 11, 2019 regular Council Meeting Minutes. 

 

Budgetary Impact: N/A. 

Recommendation: Approval of Minutes. 

 

15



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Winterville Town Council 
February 11, 2019 – 7:00 PM 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

The Winterville Town Council met in a Regular Meeting on the above date at 7:00 PM in the Town Hall 
Assembly Room, with Mayor Pro Tem Smith presiding. The following were present: 

 
Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor (Absent) 

Mark Smith, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Ricky Hines, Councilman 
Tony Moore, Councilman 

Johnny Moye, Councilman 
Veronica Roberson Councilwoman 

Keen Lassiter, Town Attorney 
Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Ryan Willhite, Police Chief 
Travis Welborn, Public Works Director 

Robert Sutton, Electric Director 
Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

Evan Johnston, Parks and Recreation Director 
Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Amy P. Barrow, Executive Staff Assistant/Human Resource Assistant 
 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Pro Tem Smith called the meeting to order. 
 
INVOCATION: Councilman Moore gave the Invocation. There was a moment of silence for the family of 
Congressman Jones on his death, and illness of a Senator and Mayor Jackson’s wife. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Pro Tem Smith led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
WELCOME: Mayor Pro Tem Smith welcomed the public. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Town Manager Parker asked that two 2 items be added. One is old business, the 2017 Streets 
Improvements item and a new business item, the Ford Tractor sale to Grifton. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Councilman Moore to approve the amended 
agenda. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
  

16



PROCLAMATIONS: 
 
Black History Month: Mayor Pro Tem Smith read the following Proclamation: 
 

 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moye and seconded by Councilman Hines to approve the 
Proclamation. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 

17



PUBLIC HEARING: 
 
Davis Property Rezoning: Planning Director Jones gave the following presentation: 
 

 
 

 
 

18



 
 

 
 

19



 
 

 
 

20



 
 

 
 

21



 
 

 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith declared the public hearing open and asked if anyone would like to speak in favor 
of the annexation request. Mayor Pro Tem Smith asked if anyone would like to speak in opposition of the 
rezoning request. Mayor Pro Tem Smith asked for any further discussion or any more questions. Hearing 
none he closed the Public Hearing and asked what is the Board’s pleasure. 
 

22



Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Hines to approve the Davis 
Property Rezoning. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Mayor Pro Tem Smith read the Public Comment Policy. 
 
Gary Whitehurst of 105B Emily Drive: Excessive noise from the Moose Lodge. This will be his third year 
of excessive noise from patrons at the Moose Lodge. The police department is ignoring the noise 
ordinance; he read the noise ordinance and said that no one honors. He has been calling the police for 
2 years and is not sure why they are reluctant to act on the Moose Lodge; can the Town help. Mayor 
Pro Tem Smith asked Police Chief Willhite to speak on the matter. Police Chief Willhite pulled the past 
year report and our officers have responded 6 times. We do have similar concerns about the Moose 
Lodge; however, permit is not part of our policy. Mr. Mosley requested if the Police ask them to turn the 
music down; that sometimes when Police leave, they turn the music up. Police Chief Willhite after the 
warning to turn down then will need to stay close by to be vigilant; they have shut one down completely. 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith noted the Moose Lodge requires the permit not the Town. Police Chief Willhite 
offered that one thing they could do is have renter get a permit. Mayor Pro Tem Smith requested to 
submit a letter to Mr. Mosely to be mindful of surrounding neighbors and have the Officers be more 
diligent when following-up on a noise complaint. Mayor Pro Tem Smith asked Mr. Whitehurst if he had 
anything further. Mr. Whitehurst thanked Council for hearing me out. Councilwoman Roberson asked 
what if it is limited to 11:00 pm; Town Manager Parker said that currently it is 11:00 pm unless they get 
a permit to get an exception. Councilman Hines asked who gets the permitting fee. Town Manager 
Parker said the Town receives the permit fee. Councilman Hines asked Mr. Whitehurst if he had 
recorded any of this. Mr. Whitehurst said he did have video; had not shared with Police but shared with 
Councilman Moore. Mayor Pro Tem Smith said let us know if it improves or does not. 
 
Valerie Tyson-Update on Space Dedication for Ronnie "Run" Cox. She wanted to thank you for 

allowing my family to honor Ronnie Cox, on behalf of the space given at the Library. 

Glenn Johnson recognition of Ms. Aquila Thigpen owner of Awesome Radio 106.9. He shared 

experience with attending the Grifton Town Meeting; when the Mayor spoke very highly of the council 

members of Winterville made me happy. Thanked Police Chief Willhite for attending the radio station. 

Brad Guth– Winterville Chamber of Commerce President discussion on Chamber Champion Program. 

Chamber Champion highlights businesses in Winterville. Milestone awards for 5, 10, 15, etc. years 

award. Leads group business owners get together meeting on Wednesday. Grand opening tonight at 

State Farm agency on Old Tar Road; reception at Mill and Main on Friday; Debbie Avery shout out to 8 

new members in the Chamber. Councilwoman Roberson noted owners of State Farm agency located 

here because of the friendliness. 

CONSENT AGENDA:  
 
Items included in the Consent Agenda: 

1. Approval of the following set of Council Meeting Minutes: 
 January 14, 2019, Regular Council Meeting. 
2. Budget Amendment (updated). 
3. Release of Delinquent Fire Inspections Fees. 
4. Audit Contract amendment for fiscal year 2017 – 2018. 
5. Mellon Downs - Lots 16, 17, 18, 20, 22, 23, 24, 26, 39, 42, 43, 44, 46, 48, 51, 53, 54, 55, 56, 72, 

76, 77, 78, 79, 80, 81, 82, 84, 86 and Parcels 82642 & 82885 (HOA Property) in Phases 2A and 
2B - Set Public Hearing for Annexation for March 11, 2019. 

23



6. Worthington Road Corridor Study – Professional Services Agreement. 
7. Approval of Contract with Vaughn & Melton Consulting Engineers for Disaster Management, 

Recovery, and Consulting Services. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Councilman Moore to approve the consent 
agenda. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
Councilwoman Roberson asked about one company that is working on Boyd Street. Public Works 
Director Welborn noted we have made them redo some work. Volcurt is not doing any work just inspecting 
as the project professional service. Councilman Moore S. T. Wooten maybe send a letter to DOT not to 
use them again. Public Works Director Welborn noted they are getting close working on curbing; should 
have some paving this week. 
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
 
Resolution authorizing amendment to existing contract for creation of Parks and Recreation Capital 
Improvement Plan:  
 
Parks and Recreation Director Johnston noted that Kimley-Horn; Parks and Recreation does not have a 
CIP currently does help with grants and future development. We have spoken with them about doing a 
CIP. Requesting authorization to approve contract. 

24



 

25



 

26



 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Moye to approve the 
amendment to the contract and adopt the resolution. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 

27



2017 Street Improvements Project – Final Adjusting Change Order. 
 
Public Works Director Welborn noted all the work is complete for the streets and the project added Vernon 
Avenue and patching sinkholes throughout the town. We are using contingency funds and now we know 
the exact cost; Chapman Street between Boyd Street removed due to Boyd Street repaired. We talk with 
the Contractor regularly to keep Mill Street cleaned. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Moye to approve the final 
adjusting change order to the 2017 Street Improvements Project contract. The motion carried 
unanimously, 5-0. 

28



 

29



 

30



 

31



 

32



 

33



 

34



 

35



 

36



 

37



 

38



 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
Approval of Task Order 25 with the Wooten Co. for Winterville Manual of Standard Designs and Details 
Update. 
 
Public Works Director Welborn explained the design criteria for the update. The existing Manual adopted 
in 2001 and put in place in 2002 needs updating. The approved budget for this update is $50,000. The 
Wooten Company is proposing a ceiling fee of $40,000. Town Manager Parker talked with other 
Engineering firms and noted the fee was higher. Councilwoman Roberson asked if this would entail a 
Recreation fee. Public Works Director Welborn said this is just for public works. The recreation fee is in 
the subdivision ordinance. Councilwoman Roberson noted concerns from the board recently concerning 
the roll curb versus standard curb. Public Works Director Welborn said we want to add this in the update. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to approve Task 
Order 25 with the Wooten Co. for Winterville Manual of Standard Designs and Details Update. The 
motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 

39



 

40



 

41



 

42



 

43



Appointment to Recreation Advisory Board: 
 
Parks and Recreation Director Johnston noted that we have two non-resident openings existing on the 
Advisory Board. We have one application from Alexis Davis that meets the non-resident membership 
condition. Councilwoman Roberson asked what the residency criteria is. Parks and Recreation Director 
Johnston said they live outside the Town limits but live within the Winterville Township. Councilman Hines 
asked what that area consisted. Town Manager Parker suggested we decide if Township versus 
extraterritorial jurisdiction is better. Councilman Hines asked that we look at the language to make it so it 
does not go that far. Attorney Lassiter said if we move from the Township, we need to find a jurisdiction 
closer to home. Councilman Hines asked do we need to revamp the language first. Town Manager Parker 
noted the applicant lives in Sterling Point. Parks and Recreation Director Johnston said the board consists 
of six residents and three non-residents. We could grandfather the one present member outside the 
extraterritorial jurisdiction until their term expires. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Councilman Moore to table until we revise 
the jurisdiction. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
Approval of Sale of 1988 Ford 3910 Tractor to the Town of Grifton. 
 
Councilman Moye asked to know more about the item. Public Works Director Welborn said the 1988 
Ford tractor that is 30 years old. The town bought a new tractor this year. The Town of Grifton needs 
the tractor and is willing to pay $4,500. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to approve the 
Sale of 1988 Ford 3910 Tractor to the Town of Grifton. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 

44



 

45



Clarification of Speed Limit Ordinances on Mill Street, Church Street, and Reedy Branch Road. 
 
Public Works Director Welborn suggested Council approve each street individually. Public Works 
Director Welborn contacted DOT about posting the 55 mph sign at Reedy Branch Road and Mill Street. 
He kept nudging them and received the response that the Town and DOT need to adopt ordinances to 
change the speed limits. Some are already 35 but not posted in the County. DOT automatically lowers 
the speed limit for an annexed street to 35 mph, unless modified higher or lower. 
 
The first ordinance is Mill Street north of Worthington Street 45 mph to 35 mph runs all the way out to 
45 mph. Mayor Pro Tem Smith noted we are we just changing the ordinance. Ordinance #1036308 is 
the existing ordinance for the 45 mph zone on Mill Street from Worthington Street to the old corporate 
limits south of Vernon White Road. Repeal this ordinance and a new ordinance (#1074824) approved. 
The new ordinance simply extends the 45 mph zone to the end of Mill Street at Winterville Parkway 
since the entire street is now within the corporate limits. 
 
Councilwoman Roberson asked about Worthington Street to Highway 11 on Mill Street 45 mph. 
Councilman Hines said purpose of the change to line up condition. Public Works Director Welborn said 
ordinance would read 45 mph around Worthington Street out to Highway 11 signs already there, just to 
match the current signage. Councilwoman Roberson noted there is a lot of traffic on that street. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Councilman Moore to repeal Ordinance 
#1036308 and enact Ordinance #1074824. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 

46



 

47



 

48



Public Works Director Welborn said Ordinance #1036319 is proposed by DOT to repeal the 25 mph zone 
on Mill Street that extends 750 LF in either direction from its’ intersection with Main Street This ordinance 
was adopted in 1997 however, it does not appear that signage was ever installed or the speed limit 
enforced. DOT recommends repealing this ordinance such that this section of road will revert to a 35 mph 
speed limit. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to repeal 
Ordinance #1036319. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 

49



 

50



Public Works Director Welborn noted Ordinance #1036309 is the existing ordinance for the 45 mph zone 
on Mill Street, south of Liberty Street. Currently this zone extends southward from Liberty Street to a point 
slightly south of Laurie Ellis Road that was the old corporate limits. DOT proposes to repeal this ordinance 
and enact a new ordinance that extends the 45 mph zone further south to the new corporate limits 
(Ordinance #1074825). The new 45 mph zone will be from a point 150 LF south of Liberty Street to a 
point 175 LF south of Emily Drive. Proposed Ordinance #1074826 will cover the remaining portion of Mill 
Street out to Reedy Branch Road and this portion will remain at 55 mph. 
 
Public Works Director Welborn said Church Street out by Reedy Branch Road (Church Street Extension); 
operates at 55 mph DOT to sign it 55 mph. Councilman Moye said it should not be 55 mph with all the 
development. Town Manager Parker noted there is development under way. Mayor Pro Tem Smith 
suggested we go back to DOT for 45 mph. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Moye to repeal Ordinance 
#1036309 and enact Ordinance #1074825 and Ordinance #1074826. The motion carried 
unanimously, 5-0. 

51



 

52



 

53



 

54



Public Works Director Welborn noted Ordinance #1074827 proposed to enact a 55 mph speed limit on 
Church Street from Reedy Branch Road to a point approximately 1,700 LF south of Laurie Ellis Road 
DOT recommends this change due to the change in the corporate limits. The Town Council did not 
approve of this ordinance and instead requested that the speed limit be 45 mph on Church Street from 
Reedy Branch Road to Park Road. If DOT agrees, please prepare an ordinance for execution. Council 
did not enact Ordinance #1074827. 
 
Public Works Director Welborn noted Ordinance #1074828 proposes across from OPS, to enact a 45 
mph speed limit on Church Street from Laurie Ellis Road to a point approximately 1,700 LF south of 
Laurie Ellis Road This is due to the change in the corporate limits and is recommended by DOT. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Councilman Moore to enact an ordinance 
to extend 35 mph from Laurie Ellis to Park Street and from Park Street to Town limits, 45 mph. 
The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
Town Manager Parker noted we would make an ordinance to submit to DOT for adoption. Mayor Pro 
Tem Smith said speed limits Board send something to DOT concerning Laurie Ellis Road changed to 
35 mph, Old Tar Road on Laurie Ellis Road, 45 mph until town limits and then 35 mph. 
 
In addition to the ordinances proposed by DOT, Town Council also voted to request that the speed limit 
reduce on Laurie Ellis Road to 45 mph from Old Tar Road to the Town limits just east of Oakwood 
Drive, and 35 mph from the Town limits just east of Oakwood Drive all the way to Mill Street. The speed 
is currently 55 mph from Old Tar to the Town limits and 45 mph from the Town limits to Mill Street. This 
is due to the increased development in that area and additional traffic. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Councilman Moye to request DOT that the 
speed limit reduce on Laurie Ellis Road to 45 mph from Old Tar Road to the Town limits just 
east of Oakwood Drive, and 35 mph from the Town limits just east of Oakwood Drive all the way 
to Mill Street. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 

55



 

56



 

57



Public Works Director Welborn noted Ordinance #1074829 proposes to establish a 55 mph speed limit 
on Reedy Branch Road from a point 900 LF east of Church Street all the way to Mill Street This is due to 
a change in the corporate limits and recommendation by DOT. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Hines to enact Ordinance 
#1074829 approve the item. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 

58



 

59



Public Works Director Welborn noted Ordinance #1074830 proposes to establish a speed limit of 50 mph 
on Reedy Branch Road from Mill Street to Winterville Parkway per DOT recommendation.  
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Hines to enact Ordinance 
#1074830. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 

60



 

61



Public Works Director Welborn noted he would report to DOT. Councilman Moore asked about the speed 
limit on Forlines Road by the Kiwanis. Public Works Director Welborn always 35 if annexed into the Town. 
 
ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA/FUTURE WORK SESSIONS: 
 
Town Manager Parker needed we have a workshop on Stormwater, suggest we do in March before the 
budget. Town Manager will reach out with possible dates. Councilwoman Roberson asked if that would 
include fees. Town Manager Parker certainly part of the conversation along with some of the challenges 
staff has had. 
 
REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS: 
 
1. Department Heads Updated the following projects currently underway:  
 
 Minimum Housing/Code Enforcement (TLP): Town Manager Parker noted staff burned down a 

house on Academy Street through minimum housing and code enforcement continues on top of 
the list. 

 Tar Road Widening Project – Electric Engineering/Relocation (RS): Recommend a proposal, 
talked with them this week. 

 New Electric Territory Engineering/Installation (RS): Recommend a proposal, talked with them 
this week. 

 LED lighting (RS): Streetlight with a white or blue glow, you are a Winterville Customer; working on 
backyard lights now. Councilman Moye asked should we see some savings. Electric Director Sutton 
not metered but should see a 50% savings; Councilman Moye said, no way of seeing the cost savings. 
Electric Director Sutton said you would have to meter all the lights. 

 Fork Swamp Greenway Project (EJ): Master Greenway Plan in the draft process; hoping to have a 
final document at next month's meeting; 25% plans later this month. Councilwoman Roberson asked 
have you sent out surveys. Parks and Recreation Director Johnston said yes including social media. 

 Resurfacing of the Hillcrest Basketball Courts (EJ): Courts completed Friday February 8; six total 
goals and backboards. 

 Multi-Purpose Building Site Plan (EJ) 
 General Parks and Rec (EJ): T-ball starting up and daddy daughter dance Friday, February 15. 
 Winterville Market/Town Common Plan (TLP): market town commons plan progressing. 
 Winterville Land Use Plan (BJ): Steering committee member Pastor Darron Carmon has 

accepted; flier for public engagement inviting public to Public Visioning Session Meeting 
Monday, February 25 6-8 pm; send to members; social media. Councilman Hines said west side 
of town extending the ETJ. Town Manager Parker noted currently have agreements in place 
that may limit our ability to get out to the bypass; time spent on welcoming and getting our town 
attractive; Town Manager Parker will get those back out to everyone. 

 Chapman Street Culvert - Nobel Canal Drainage Basin Study (TW): 90% structural plans and 
easements working on permits concurrently. 

 2018 SRF Application (Sewer Rehabilitation) (TW):  camera and cleaning the lines; Thursday 
had to leave for an emergency; work tonight and should be done by Wednesday. 

 Church Street Pump Station Rehabilitation (TW): low bidder came back good; working on 
easement; bring the contract for approval in March; too wet right now. 

 Dog holding pen (TW): rebuilt a new roof, new post; salt treated, Town Manager Parker been 
keeping up with Ms. Jaimeson; old roof may have been a couple of drips and have a screen on 
the side, Ms. Jaimeson has discussed purchasing some dome type houses. 

 Sidewalk improvement project (TW): should get back contract this week. 

62



 Fire Department (TLP): Fire Chief Moore not feeling well; 13 offers and the majority start the February 
18; excited about the opportunities; have new truck in late March; Councilman Hines noted we had a 
great team helping with the process. Town Manager Parker said, yes we had 3 outside agents 

 
REPORTS FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY, MAYOR, AND TOWN COUNCIL, AND TOWN MANAGER: 
 
Attorney Lassiter: no report reminder that there is a closed session. 
 
Councilman Moore: No report. 
 
Councilwoman Roberson: no comment, Recognize Judge Hastings in attendance. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Smith: None. 
 
Councilman Moye: No report - Welcome and thank the youth for coming out tonight from South Central 
High School. 
 
Councilman Hines: No report. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS: Town Manager Parker read the following announcements: 

1. Planning and Zoning Board Meeting – Monday, February 18 – 7:00 pm - Town Hall Assembly 
Room. 

2. Special Called Council Meeting/Electric Rate Workshop - Tuesday, February 19 – 6:00 pm - 
Town Hall Executive Conference Room. 

3. Board of Adjustment Meeting – Tuesday, February 19 – 7:00 pm - Town Hall Assembly Room. 
4. Town & State Dinner – Wednesday, February 20, 2019 – 2:00 pm to 7:30 pm at Raleigh 

Convention Center. 
5. Comprehensive Land Use Plan Public Input Meetings: 

 Monday, February 25, 2019 – 11:00am - Downtown Walking Tour (meet at Town Hall). 
 Monday, February 25. 2019 – 6:00pm – 8:00pm - Public Visioning Session at Town Hall. 
 Tuesday, February 26, 2019 – 6:00pm - 7:30pm - Presentation & Open House at Town Hall. 
 Wednesday, February 27, 2019 – 8:00am - Coffee Talk at the Depot. 

Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Hines to adjourn into Closed 
Session. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. Meeting adjourned into Closed Session at 8:34 pm 
 

CLOSED SESSION: NCGS § 143-318.11. (a)(5): 
To consult with an attorney employed or retained by the public body in order to preserve the 
attorney-client privilege between the attorney and the public body, which privilege is hereby 
acknowledged. General policy matters may not be discussed in a closed session and nothing 
herein shall be construed to permit a public body to close a meeting that otherwise would be open 
merely because an attorney employed or retained by the public body is a participant. The public 
body may consider and give instructions to an attorney concerning the handling or settlement of 
a claim, judicial action, mediation, arbitration, or administrative procedure. (Discuss the price and 
other material terms of a contract or proposed contract for the acquisition of real property by 
purchase, option, exchange, or lease.) 

 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to adjourn 
Closed Session. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 

63



Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to return to open 
session. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
ADJOURN: Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to 
adjourn regular meeting. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. Meeting adjourned at 9:00 pm. 
 
 
 Adopted this the 8th day of April, 2019. 
 
 
 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

64



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Winterville Town Council 
February 19, 2019 – 7:00 PM 

Electric Rate Workshop Minutes 
 

The Winterville Town Council met in an Electric Rate Workshop on the above date at 6:00 PM in the 
Town Hall Assembly Room, with Mayor Douglas A. Jackson presiding. The following were present: 

 
Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
Mark Smith, Mayor Pro-Tem 

Ricky Hines, Councilman 
Tony Moore, Councilman 

Johnny Moye, Councilman 
Veronica Roberson Councilwoman 

Keen Lassiter, Town Attorney 
Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager 
Robert Sutton, Electric Director 

Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 
Amy P. Barrow, Executive Staff Assistant/Human Resource Assistant 

 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Jackson called the meeting to order. 
 
INVOCATION: Councilwoman Roberson gave the Invocation. 
 
WELCOME: Mayor Jackson welcomed the public. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Smith to approve the agenda. 
The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED: 
 
Electric Rate Presentation and Discussion: Town Manager Parker a year ago, we discussed the contract 
with NTE Staff and asked for 12 months to give a cost estimate. Go through the process again. We are 
not asking for a vote, just giving lots of information. A copy of the PowerPoint presentation and Electric 
Cost of Services Study from PowerServices is in front of you. Electric Director Sutton gave the following 
presentation: 

65



 
 

 
 

66



 
 

 
 

67



 
 

 
 

68



 

 
 

69



 
 

 
 

70



 
 

 
 

71



 
 

 
 

72



 
 

 
 

73



 
 

 
 

74



 

75



 

76



 

77



 

78



 

79



 

80



 

81



 

82



 

83



 

84



 

85



 

86



 

87



 

88



 

89



 

90



 

91



 

92



 

93



 

94



 

95



Town Manager Parker noted that Staff has worked really hard and reminded Council that percentages 
can be complicated (20% was utilized as savings when signing with NTE). Increases in additional areas, 
new options presented come with an increase in a few years. Talked about on WA/SW side all 
considerations are the same, come back in some form to discuss Council’s vision for rate changes, 
workshop in March for some. 
 
Councilman Moye said today until 2026 amount of savings with a 4% reduction, 2022 savings with a 2% 
reduction, 2024. Town Manager Parker said increased costs and savings from NTE. Not giving an 
increase saves customers from an increase. Council Moore asked if any meetings with NTE, have they 
discussed the plans with other groups what they will do with savings. Councilwoman Roberson asked 
have any of the new NTE customers changed their rates. Councilman Moore said three have given an 
8% decrease; charge new rates to new customers, NTE may be cheaper. Town Manager Parker said 
meetings are conference calls, mostly discussing hedging and gas. Electric Director Sutton said we are 
not hearing any decreases in gas. 
 
Councilman Moore said he was curious about other Towns. They are not growing without much debt. 
Why not look at commercial decrease like with Roberts Company. Town Manager Parker said rate 
structure itself needs to be adjusted; need to look at service for electric; water sewer behind SECU is 
going to be an expensive endeavor. Town Manager Parker said citizens say that the Town sits on $20 
million is untrue. $7 million would be a one and done used for capital projects. Finance Director Bowers 
said noted an eroded general fund; fund balance is gone what another option is. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith said Council and Staff should be proud; have not had an increase since 2009; one 
increase in taxes; fund balance has allowed the Town to do things that otherwise rates would have to 
have raised. Charged Electric Director Sutton with getting new territory that will cost money, rather give 
no decrease and go 17 years without an increase and use for infrastructure. Mayor Jackson agreed. 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith 2% to 3% is $4 to $5 going to make a difference, turn around in a couple years 
and increase rates. 
 
Councilwoman Roberson said when we entered into the contract there would be savings to pass on to 
the customers; 3% reduction would be $140,000 of the $6 million budget; other small towns offered 9% 
decrease and did not cause a hardship. Finance Director Bowers said the projected growth is what the 
graph is based. Councilman Moore said 8% like the small towns. Town Manager Parker said other 
systems are not like the Town. Council Hines asked that Council get conference calls and notes. Town 
Manager said Council would get the information. Council Moore said be prepared to asked questions. 
Assistant Town Manager Williams said some towns have smaller budgets, debt non-existent, and limited 
infrastructure. 
 
Councilman Moye said the Council went on the assumption that this would make the decision to go with 
NTE. Assistant Town Manager Williams 11.76 with NTE overtime the projected numbers spending less 
with NTE than paying with Duke; reduction versus savings. Councilman Moore said 3.9% per kWh. 
Assistant Town Manager Williams said variables, 3.9% per kWh based on the cost when through the 
plant may be different. Councilman Moore said minutes from the meetings, need more information. 
 
Assistant Town Manager Williams said 90% residential, trying to prepare, Laurie Ellis Road Extension, 
behind SECU. Finance Director Bowers said savings talked about, savings from moving from Duke to 
NTE. Councilman Moore said presented to the Council with an original 20% savings. Town Manager 
Parker said 20% might have been mention by Nick Henderson for his entity, but not the Towns. 
 
Councilman Hines said he was not here and would like to look at the notes and minutes. Councilman 
Moye said project the increase during the period. Councilman Moore said unknown cost in four years. 

96



Town Manager Parker said that the Town Staff has been tasked to project; 2022 with a 3% increase. 
Councilman Moye said could the Council do a 3% increase to offset 2026 cost. Town Manager Parker 
said Assistant Town Manager Williams’ math for 2026 would possibly be a 13% increase. Councilwoman 
Roberson said feels like savings history the Town should. Town Manager Parker said budget stands on 
its own; see the impact on the annual year budget. Councilman Moore asked why we chose a consultant. 
Assistant Town Manager Williams said we chose a consultant for the cost of service study only; one bid. 
 
ADJOURN: Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Smith to adjourn 
the meeting. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. Meeting adjourned at 7:42 pm. 
 
 
 Adopted this the 8th day of April, 2019. 
 
 
 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

97



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Winterville Town Council 
March 11, 2019 – 7:00 PM 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

 
The Winterville Town Council met in a Regular Meeting on the above date at 7:00 PM in the Town Hall 
Assembly Room, with Mayor Douglas A. Jackson presiding. The following were present: 

 
Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
Mark Smith, Mayor Pro-Tem 

Ricky Hines, Councilman 
Tony Moore, Councilman 

Johnny Moye, Councilman 
Veronica Roberson Councilwoman 

Keen Lassiter, Town Attorney 
Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager 
Ryan Willhite, Police Chief 

Travis Welborn, Public Works Director 
Robert Sutton, Electric Director 

Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 
Evan Johnston, Parks and Recreation Director 

Bryan Jones, Planning Director 
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Jackson called the meeting to order. 
 
INVOCATION: Mayor Pro Tem Smith gave the Invocation. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Jackson led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
WELCOME: Mayor Jackson welcomed the public. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Town Manager Parker noted amendments to the Agenda. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to approve the 
amended agenda. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
NEW EMPLOYEE: 
 
Parks and Recreation Director Johnston introduced the newest member of the Parks and Recreation 
staff, Kaleb Pait, Maintenance Worker. 
 

98



PROCLAMATIONS: 
 
Mayor Jackson read the proclamation recognizing Girl Scout Week. He presented it to the Girl Scouts in 
attendance. 

 

99



PRESENTATIONS: 
 
Mayor Jackson and Town Clerk Harvey read and presented the certificates to the Pitt County Schools 
Early College High School-2019 Community Black History Quiz Bowl Winners. 

 
 
Mayor Jackson recognized a group of South Central High School students in attendance and they 
stood for recognition. 
  

100



Presentation of the 2017-2018 Audit Report: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director Bowers gave the 
following presentation. 
 

 
 

 
 

101



 
 

 
 

102



 
 

 
 

103



 
 

 
 

104



 
 

 
 

Finance Director Bowers asked for any questions or comments. Councilman Moore and Town Manager 
Parker thanked Finance Director Bowers for his hard work on completion of the audit. 

  

105



PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
Mellon Downs Subdivision, Phases 2A and 2B Annexation: Planning Director Jones gave the following 
presentation. 
 

 
 

 
 

106



 
 

Planning Director Jones noted the annexation would be effective March 31, 2019. 
 
Mayor Jackson declared the Public Hearing open, asked if anyone would like to speak in favor of the 
annexation request. No one spoke in favor of the annexation. 
 
Mayor Jackson asked if anyone would like to speak in opposition of the annexation request. No one 
spoke in opposition of the annexation. 
 
Mayor Jackson asked for any further discussion or any questions. Hearing none, he closed the Public 
Hearing and asked the Board’s pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Smith to approve the 
annexation. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Mayor Jackson read the Public Comment Policy. 
 
William Mitchell – Mr. Mitchell was not present to speak. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
Items included in the Consent Agenda: 
 
Approval of the following set of Council Meeting Minutes: 

 January 28, 2019 Vision Setting Meeting. 
Annexation - Ange Plaza, Lot 22: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate the Sufficiency of Annexation. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moye and seconded by Councilman Hines to approve the consent 
agenda. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 

107



OLD BUSINESS: 
 
Approval of Next Round of Homes Needing Urgent Repairs through the Town’s URP. 
 
Town Manager Parker asked to table this item to the April meeting. The list will consist of four (4) homes 
and one (1) alternate from the waiting list of applicants. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Smith to table the URP home 
selection until the next meeting. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
Winterville Recreation Advisory Board Composition. 
 
Parks and Recreation Director Johnston presented the following information comparing recreation board 
composition from 27 municipalities across North Carolina. 

 
Councilman Moore asked who could participate in Winterville programs. Parks and Recreation Director 
Johnston said any Pitt County resident; anyone outside the Town limits pays an extra fee. Councilman 
Moore said he prefers those in in extraterritorial jurisdiction. Parks and Recreation Director Johnston said 
presently the Recreation Advisory Board composition consists of six (6) residents, three (3) non-
residents, and one (1) alternate that can be a resident or non-resident. Councilwoman Roberson  asked 
the boundary for a non-resident. Parks and Recreation Director Johnston said Winterville Township. 

108



Councilman Moore said we should do away with township boundary. Parks and Recreation Director 
Johnston said it was good to have a non-resident representative since we serve those areas. Mayor Pro 
Tem said he likes the way we currently have it set-up. 
 
Councilman Hines said he was not clear of the township boundary, what is this delineation. Parks and 
Recreation Director Johnston said others need voice even a though a minor voice. Mayor Pro Tem Smith 
asked Township versus Winterville address. Parks and Recreation Director Johnston said we are serving 
all over the county. Councilwoman Roberson asked if fees change outside of town for non-residents. 
Councilman Moore said non-residents pay more. Parks and Recreation Director Johnston said they pay 
more to supplement. Councilman Moye asked are fees to budget set-up. Councilman Hines noted that 
Council members represented in some towns. 
 
Mayor Jackson asked any additional questions. Town Manager Parker noted that Winterville Township 
has approximately 50,000 people, and sent a map to Council to view. Parks and Recreation Director 
Johnston noted we are the only place that uses a township. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Councilman Moore to utilize the 
extraterritorial jurisdiction boundary as the limit for out of Town members on the Recreation 
Advisory Board. Any existing members outside the existing limits grandfathered on the Board for 
their existing term. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
Brookstone Subdivision, Phase 1 – Request for Amendment to Existing Conditional Uses: Planning 
Director Jones gave the following informational presentation that the Planning and Zoning Board will 
consider on Monday, March 18, 2018 for consideration. 
 

 
 

109



 
 

 
 

110



 
 

 
 
Councilwoman Roberson asked about the proposed changes. Planning Director Jones said this would 
amend/remove the condition of 25% of the homes having full brick veneers. Councilman Moore said 
change would help. Mayor Jackson said he likes the all brick homes. 
  

111



Approval of Electric Territory Expansion Design and Engineering Contract. 
 
Electric Director Sutton presented the following contract negotiated with PowerServices. 

 

112



 

113



 

114



 

115



 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Smith to approve the 
Electric Territory Expansion Design and Engineering Contract with PowerServices. The motion 
carried unanimously, 5-0. 

116



Approval Old Tar Road Widening Project Electric Utility Relocation Design and Engineering Contract. 
 
Electric Director Sutton presented the following contract negotiated with PowerServices. 

 

117



 

118



 

119



 

120



 

121



 

122



 

123



 

124



 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Hines to approve the Old Tar 
Road Widening Project Electric Utility Relocation Design and Engineering Contract with 
PowerServices. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 

125



NEW BUSINESS: 
 
Approval of Contract Award to Tripp Brothers Inc. for Church St. Lift Station Force Main Bore. 
 
Public Works Director Welborn presented the following bid/contract from Tripp Brother’s, Inc. 

 

126



 

127



 

128



 

129



 

130



 

131



 

132



 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to approve the 
bid from Tripp Brother’s, Inc. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
  

133



REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS: 
 
 Minimum Housing/Code Enforcement (TLP): Mike and Willie are working; Councilman Moore 

asked if we could save the magnolia tree beside Dollar Tree. Town Manager Parker said we get 
permits and try to save. 

 Tar Road Widening Project – Electric Engineering/Relocation (RS) 
 New Electric Territory Engineering/Installation (RS) 
 Fork Swamp Greenway Project (EJ): Progressing. 
 Multi-Purpose Building Site Plan (EJ): Progressing. 
 Playgrounds near completion, Easter Egg Hunt (EJ) 
 Winterville Market/Town Common Plan (BW) 
 Winterville Land Use Plan (BJ): Busy land use planning sessions, on web site, housing variety 
 Worthington Road Corridor Study (BJ): Draft coming soon. 
 Chapman Street Culvert - Nobel Canal Drainage Basin Study (TW): culvert permits this week, 

bids 45-60 days. 
 2018 SRF Application (Sewer Rehabilitation) (TW): Engineer reviewing camera. 
 Church Street Pump Station Rehabilitation (TW): Progressing. 
 Speed Limits (TW): Sent to DOT, waiting response. 
 Boyd Street (TW): DOT, some progress, complete late May-early June, west side progressing. 
 Laurie Ellis (TW): DOT, end of March- early April completion. 
 Police Status (RW): Break into cars at Cedar Ridge, unlocked vehicles at night. 
 
Councilman Moore asked about paving Park Street. Public Works Director Welborn noted he spoke with 
DOT and they have no plans at this time to pave. Councilman Moore asked that we send a letter to 
representatives to get DOT to curb, gutter, and pave Park Street. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Moye to send a letter to our 
Representatives requesting the State to install curb and gutter and pave Park Street. The motion 
carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
REPORTS FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY, MAYOR, AND TOWN COUNCIL, AND TOWN MANAGER: 
 
Attorney Lassiter: No report, reminder of closed session. 
 
Councilman Moore: Thanks to Finance Director Bowers for CAFR. 
 
Councilwoman Roberson: Death of Ayden Commissioner, Mary Alice Davenport. Jobs conference in 
Community Room went well, noted Women's History Month. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Smith: None. 
 
Councilman Moye: What is the status of Nobel canal study? Assistant Town Manager Williams noted 
we are continuing to converse and work on projects and needs, $100,000 - $150,000 extra funds. 
Councilman Moye asked when we would hear something. Assistant Town Manager Williams said this 
summer. Councilman Moore asked about Golden Leaf Grant, could the work be included in bid. Assistant 
Town Manager Williams said it was not part of the grant; it could be included. Public Works Director 
Welborn said we would have to engineer and permit, cost would be required. Assistant Town Manager 
Williams would have to get permission and can make contacts. Councilwoman Roberson asked have we 
done some studies and cost estimates. Public Works Director Welborn said we do have some 
information. Assistant Town Manager Williams said we have some estimates and they are older. Public 
Works Director Welborn when we have the workshop we will have information. 

134



 
Councilman Hines: SCHS Boys Basketball Team East Regional Champions a disciplined team. 
 
Manager Parker: None. 
 
Mayor Jackson: None. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS: Clerk Harvey gave the following announcements 
 
1. Planning and Zoning Board Meeting – Monday, March 18, 2019 – 7:00 p.m. - Town Hall Assembly 

Room. 
2. Board of Adjustment Meeting – Tuesday, Tuesday March 19, 2019 – 7:00 p.m. - Town Hall 

Assembly Room. 
3. Stormwater Workshop – Monday, March 25, 2019 – 6:00 p.m. – Town Hall Executive Conference 

Room. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to adjourn into 
Closed Session. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. Meeting adjourned to Closed Session at 8:35 
pm. 
 

CLOSED SESSION: NCGS § 143-318.11. (a)(5): 
To consult with an attorney employed or retained by the public body in order to preserve the 
attorney-client privilege between the attorney and the public body, which privilege is hereby 
acknowledged. General policy matters may not be discussed in a closed session and nothing 
herein shall be construed to permit a public body to close a meeting that otherwise would be open 
merely because an attorney employed or retained by the public body is a participant. The public 
body may consider and give instructions to an attorney concerning the handling or settlement of 
a claim, judicial action, mediation, arbitration, or administrative procedure. (Discuss the price and 
other material terms of a contract or proposed contract for the acquisition of real property by 
purchase, option, exchange, or lease.) 

 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Councilman Moore to adjourn Closed 
Session. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
Motion made by Councilwoman Roberson and seconded by Councilman Hines to return to open 
session. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
ADJOURN: Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Smith to adjourn 
regular meeting. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. Meeting adjourned at 9:00 pm. 
 
 
 Adopted this the 8th day of April, 2019. 
 
 
 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 

135



 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

136



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 
 

Meeting Date: April 8, 2019 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Ange Plaza, Lot 22 – Annexation. 

Action Requested: Set Date for Public Hearing for May 13, 2019. 

Attachments: Certification of Sufficiency with Petition, Annexation Map and Legal Description. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 3/27/2019 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

 TC 03/27/2019  FD        TM 04/03/2019  Final 04/03/2019 

Supporting Documentation 

The property owner of Lot 22 in Ange Plaza is applying for annexation into the Town limits. 

Ange Plaza, Lot 22: 

Location: Beacon Drive 

Size: .8747 acres 

Zoned: GB 

 

Annexation Process: 

1st Council Meeting: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate the Sufficiency of the Annexation (3/11/19).  

2nd Council Meeting: Schedule a Public Hearing for the Annexation (4/8/19). 

3rd Council Meeting: Hold Public Hearing on the Annexation (5/13/18). 

 

 

 

 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Set Date for Public Hearing.  

 

137



138



139



M.B. 79, PG. 78
ANGE PLAZA

(60'PUBLIC R/W - 40' BC/BC)

BEACON DRIVE

MB 64, P 26

MB 66, P 123

ANGE PLAZA

ANGE PLAZA

DB 3077, PG 222
DB 480, PG 558

MOORE, LLC
COLLICE & ANN
LINDA E.  KEEL &

BEACO
N 

DRI
VE

(6
0'
PUBLI

C 
R/

W
 - 
36
' B

C/
BC)

(R
/W
 V

A
R
IE

S
 -
 P

A
V
E

M
E

N
T
 V

A
R
IE

S
)

(W
IN

T
E

R
V
IL

L
E
 P

A
R

K
W

A
Y
)

N
C
 H

W
Y
 1
1
 &
 9
0
3

MB 66, P 145

ANGE PLAZA

MOORE, LLC

COLLICE & ANN

LINDA E.  KEEL &

DB 3077, PG 222

DB 480, PG 558

(COMMON AREA)

ANGE PLAZA

MB 62, P 162

23

27

21

14

13

22

0.8747 ACRES

 

1
1
4
9
-

N
O

R
T

H
 

M
I
L
L

1708-FIRETOWER

1
1
4
8
-
P
I
T
T
 
T
E

C
H

1130-VERNON WHITE

N
C
 
1
1
 
(

M
E

M
O

R
I

A
L
 

B
L

V
D
)

BEACON DRIVE

N
C
 
1
1

R
A
I
L

R
O

A
D
 
E

X
T EXISTING CITY LIMITS

EXISTING CITY LIMITSEXISTING CITY LIMITS

EXISTING CITY LIMITS

E
X
IS

T
IN

G
 C
IT

Y
 L
IM
IT

S

EXISTING CITY LIMITS

M
B
 4
6
, 
P

G
 1
5
0

EXI
STI

NG 
CI

TY 
LI

M
IT
S

E
X
IS

T
IN

G
 C
IT

Y
 L
IM

IT
S

C
IT

Y
 L
IM
IT

S

E
X
IS

T
IN

G

C
IT

Y
 L
IM
IT

S

E
X
IS

T
IN

G

O
L

D
 C
IT

Y
 L
IM

IT
S

N
E

W
 C
IT

Y
 L
IM

IT
S

N 77°07
'15" W

OLD CITY LIMITS

OLD CITY LIMITS

WCO

NORTH CAROLINAWINTERVILLE TOWNSHIP           PITT COUNTY

LICENSE NUMBER AND SEAL

SURVEYED: APPROVED:

DRAWN:

CHECKED:

DATE:

SCALE:

CEP

CEP

CEP

MALPASS & ASSOCIATES

MAP NO. PLATS RECORDED BOOK PAGE

PROJECT NO.             , DRAWING NO.

PHONE:

 

ADDRESS:

 

OWNER:

(252) 756-1780

GREENVILLE, N.C. 27858

1645 E. ARLINGTON BLVD.,SUITE D

 

P-567

ANNEXATION MAP FOR

EXISTING CITY LIMIT =

OLD CITY LIMIT =

NEW CITY LIMIT =

  WINTERVILLE   TOWNSHIP, PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

DATE:                    ; ORDINANCE NUMBER:                    ; AREA:                     ACRES

THE TOWN OF WINTERVILLE, N.C.

MAP SHOWING AREA ANNEXED BY

SUPERVISION FROM AN ACTUAL SURVEY BY ME

OR UNDER MY SUPERVISION, THAT THE RATIO

CARLTON E. PARKER               L-2980

   I, CARLTON E. PARKER, CERTIFY THAT

THIS MAP WAS DRAWN BY ME OR UNDER MY

OF PRECISION AS CALCULATED FROM

LATITUDES AND DEPARTURES 1S 1:10,000+;

THAT THE BOUNDARIES NOT SURVEYED ARE

SHOWN AS BROKEN LINES PLOTTED FROM

INFORMATION FOUND IN BOOK      , 

PAGE      ; THAT THIS PLAT WAS PREPARED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH G.S. 47-30 AS 

AMENDED. WITNESS MY ORIGINAL SIGNATURE,

VICINITY MAP
1"= 1000'

SITE

P567ANEXLOT22.DGN

2/18/19

ANGE PLAZA -   LOT 22

1543.59
' (TIE)

1"= 60'

GRAPHIC SCALE

60' 60'030' 120'

1" = 60'

(252) 714-8653

BATH, NC 27808

3 REST HAVEN ROAD EXTENSION

CEDAR LANDING PROPERTIES, LLC

0.8747
THIS      DAY OF            A.D., 2019.

DRAWING
PROGRESS

 OF THE PITT COUNTY REGISTRY

A PORTION OF THE PROPERTY IN DEED BOOK 3748 PAGE 300

ANNEX LOT 22

140



Legal Description For 

Ange Plaza Lot 22 Annexation 

 

Lying and being situate in Winterville Township, Pitt County, North Carolina and being 

more particularly described as follows: 

 

Beginning at a point in the northern right of way of Beacon Drive said point being 

located S 77-07-15 E – 1543.59’ from the intersection of the northern right of way of 

Beacon Drive and the eastern right of way of NC Hwy 11, thence from said point of 

beginning N 31-04-43 E – 300.00’, thence S 58-55-17 E – 127.00’, thence S 31-04-43 W 

– 300.00’ to the northern right of way of Beacon Drive, thence with the northern right of 

way of Beacon Drive N 58-55-17 W – 127.00’ to the point of beginning containing 

0.8747 acres. 

141



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 
 

Meeting Date: April 8, 2019 

Presenter: Ryan Willhite, Chief of Police 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Appropriation of Budgeted Salary Revenue to Capital Outlay and Contracted Services Purchases. 

Action Requested: Approval to use unused salary revenue to purchase vehicles and enter into a new Taser 

and Body Camera contract. 

Attachments: Subject Information. 

Prepared By: Ryan C. Willhite, Chief of Police Date: 3/27/2019 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

 TC 4/3/2019  FD        TM 4/3/2019  Final 4/3/2019 

Supporting Documentation 

As the Council is aware, the Town approved and budgeted for four (4) new Police Officers this fiscal year (FY 

2018-2019). Due to challenging Staffing obstacles and attrition of the current candidate pool, we have not been 

able to fill two (2) of those positions as of yet. There is currently $154,000 of unused salary money in the 

Salaries line item. If approved, the Police Department would be able to use this unused money to purchase 

three (3) vehicles, including up-fit, that were scheduled to be replaced next budget year forgoing the associated 

requested expenditure for the FY 2019-20 fiscal year. Additionally, we are requesting to enter into a more 

robust and needed contract with Axon who supplies our Taser and body camera devices. Currently, if fully 

staffed, we will have 23 fulltime officers (including the SRO) but only have eight (8) body cameras and eight (8) 

functioning Tasers. This is a safety and liability issue concern for the officers and the Town. The new contract 

will fully cover 18 new cameras and Tasers as well as insuring them for replacement and upgrade over a 5-

year period. The total unused salary requested to be appropriated from salaries is $153,962.25. 

Additionally, the Police Department requests approval to use the N.C. Sheriffs Association Purchasing Co-Op 

contracted pricing guide to purchase two (2) of the three (3) vehicles requested, as two (2) of the vehicles are 

not available on the N.C. State Contract for Police Vehicles. 

 

 

Budgetary Impact: The use of this revenue in this budget year will substantially reduce the requested budget 

expenditure for the Police Department in the next budget year requested expenditures - $153,962.25. 

Recommendation: Approval of request. 

 

142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 
 

Meeting Date: April 8, 2019 

Presenter: David Moore, Fire Chief 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Surplus and Sale of 1994 E-One Fire Engine. 

Action Requested: Approval for Town Manager to Surplus and Sale Apparatus to Johnston Community 
College. 

Attachment: (1) Estimates of Value of Similar Apparatus. 

Prepared By: David Moore, Fire Chief Date: 3/27/2019 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

 TC 03/27/2019  FD        TM 04/03/2019  Final 04/03/2019 

Supporting Documentation 

As discussed previously. The new fire engine is complete. When the new truck was approved in the budget 

process staff and council decided to surplus the 1994 engine. With the age and history of the truck, we 

agreed that making it available to a community college training program or small fire department would be 

the best opportunity for the town to sell the truck and help an organization in need. Due to the age, condition, 

history and set-up of the truck, the consensus has been that a training program would be the best avenue. 

This is because the lack of rear shoulder/lap seatbelt and the age of the truck are not necessarily ideal for 

frontline service. The next step of the process is to surplus and sale the 1994 fire engine. Considering the 

value of this item ($25,000), Council needs to approve the surplus action and direct the Town Manager to 

complete the surplus process. Staff has researched and compared similar apparatus’. We have also 

consulted our apparatus dealer regarding the value and conclude that $25,000 is a reasonable price. Staff 

recommends the 1994 Apparatus be designated as surplus and sold to Johnston Community College to be 

used for fire and rescue training. 

Budgetary Impact: $25,000 (Revenue). 

Recommendation: Staff recommends that Council approve staff to surplus and sell of the 1994 engine to 

Johnston Community College. 

 

175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 
 

Meeting Date: April 8, 2019 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Budget Amendment 2018-2019-4. 

Action Requested: Approve the Budget Amendment. 

Attachments: Budget Amendment 18-19-4. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director Date: 3/27/2019 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

 TC 03/27/2019  FD        TM 04/03/2019  Final 04/03/2019 

Supporting Documentation 

This is the fourth budget amendment for the 2018-2019 Fiscal Year. 

This amendment addresses four items. The first is the appropriated funds for the purchase of the house and 

land on Main St. across from the Fire Department. That amount is $49,000 

The second item addresses the return of the Letter of Credit funds to the developers of Villa Grande in the 

amount of $59,289 and the remainder in the amount of $5,307 was refunds issued to Bill Clark homes for funds 

held as a guarantee. 

The third item addresses funds for the contract with ARK Construction. They were engaged for the 

development of the square master plan. 

The fourth item addresses the revenue short fall resulting in FEMA not paying the Town for funds used to write 

the project budget. This is related to the Church Street Pump Station Mitigation project that is complete. We 

appealed to FEMA and recently were told that the funds would not be forth coming. We did receive a total of 

$357,200 from FEMA and Golden Leaf. 

 

 

 

 

Budgetary Impact: The total budget amendment is $167,396. 

Recommendation: Approve the Budget Amendment. 

 

194



.

 

SECTION 1. Revenues are to be changed as follows:

LINE ITEM DESCRIPTION Fund Increase Decrease

Fund Balance Contribution 10 3831 General 131,596.00$     

Retained Earnings 62 3935 Sewer 35,800.00$        

Total 167,396.00$     -$                    

SECTION 2. Appropriations are to be changed as follows:

  

LINE ITEM DESCRIPTION Department Fund Increase Decrease

Capital Outlay 1042426000 7150 Public Buildings General 49,000.00$        

Letter of Credit Reserve 1041950000 5121 Non Departmental General 64,596.00$        

Contracted Services 1042426002 4233 Buildings and Grounds General 18,000.00$        

Contribution to CIP Fund 6273732020 9107 Sewer 35,800.00$        

Total 167,396.00$     -$                    

Adopted the 8th day of April 2019.

Mayor

Town Clerk 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the Town of Winterville, that the following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for 

the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019:

BUDGET ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 18-19-4

195



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 
 

Meeting Date: April 8, 2019 

Presenter: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Set a Special Called Meeting to Conduct Town Manager’s Performance Review. 

Action Requested: Set a Meeting Date. 

Attachment: N/A. 

Prepared By: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager Date: 4/2/2019 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

 TC        FD        TM 4/2/2019  Final 4/2/2019 

Supporting Documentation 

It is that time of year again to set a Special Called Meeting Date to conduct the Town Manager’s Performance 

Review. With that said, I offer the following dates as possible suggestions: 

Suggested Dates: 

Monday, April 22, 2019 at 6:00 pm 

Tuesday, April 23, 2019 at 6:00 pm 

Monday, May 6, 2019 at 6:00 pm 

Tuesday, May 14, 2019 at 6:00 pm 

Unless the Council deems it necessary to change the process, I will author a Self-Evaluation and forward it to 

Council, in addition to sending the Performance Review instrument (which is a Council-adopted instrument). 

Each Board member will complete the Performance Review form and forward to Keen Lassiter and he will 

work will Council during the meeting to conduct said Performance Review. 

Please let me know should you have any questions. 

Thank you. 

 

 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: N/A. 

 

196



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 
 

Meeting Date: April 8, 2019 

Presenter: Ben Williams, Assistant Town 

Manager 

 

Item Section: Old Business 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation. 

Action Requested: Approval of Amendment to Engineering Services Contract with Rivers & Associates, Inc. 

Attachments: Contract Amendment. 

Prepared By: Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager Date: 3/26/2019 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

 TC 03/26/2019  FD        TM 04/03/2019  Final 04/03/2019 

Supporting Documentation 

The Town received a low-interest 20-year loan award from the Division of Water Infrastructure in the spring of 

2018 for a Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project. 

The first step in meeting the required project milestones was to select an Engineering firm to develop the 

Engineering Report, Environmental Documentation, Construction Plans and Specifications, as well as perform 

Construction Administration and Inspections. The Town entered into a contract with Rivers and Associates to 

provide the consulting services related to the cleaning, CCTV inspection, and engineering evaluation of the 

sanitary sewer collection lines proposed for rehabilitation. 

Under the initial contract, valued at $70,000, Rivers and Associates performed contract administration for the 

cleaning and TV’ing of the targeted collection lines, conducted the Phase 2 Sanitary Sewer Evaluation Survey 

and memorandum of findings, developed an Engineering Report and Environmental Information Document for 

review and approval by the State. 

The subject amendment, valued at $347,000, will cover the remaining professional services activities 

associated with the project and will include the design, surveying, bidding, construction administration, 

construction observation, and grant/loan administration. 

 

Budgetary Impact: The project costs, including Professional Services, has been approved for funding through 

the NCDENR – DWI Clean Water State Revolving Fund. TOW received a low-interest 20-year loan award in 

the amount of $3,532,000 with $500,000 being approved for principal forgiveness. 

Recommendation: Approve Amendment No. 1 to the existing Engineering Services Agreement 

 

197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 
 

Meeting Date: April 8, 2019 

Presenter: Ben Williams, Assistant Town 

Manager 

 

Item Section: New Business 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: SRF Loan Application – Authorizing Resolution – Sanitary Sewer Pump Stations Rehabilitation. 

Action Requested: Adopt Authorizing Resolution. 

Attachments: Authorizing Resolution. 

Prepared By: Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager Date: 3/26/2019 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

 TC 03/27/2019  FD        TM 04/03/2019  Final 04/03/2019 

Supporting Documentation 

The NC Department of Environmental Quality (NCDEQ) Division of Water Infrastructure (DWI) will be accepting 

applications for water and sewer improvement projects for the Spring 2019 round. 

Although the Town has made significant improvements to the existing collection system with past and currently 

underway projects, the sanitary sewer collection system is in need of continued rehabilitation. There are 

existing sanitary sewer collection system pump stations with significant rehabilitation needs identified by staff 

and consultants. It is staff’s intent to submit an application, in the amount of $1,500,000, for areas targeted in 

the recently developed and adopted Sanitary Sewer Asset Management Plan/Capital Improvements Plan. 

Applications are due April 30, 2019 with Notice of Funding anticipated to occur in July 2019. If approved for 

funding, Council will have the opportunity to decide whether or not to accept the loan offer. 

Budgetary Impact: Long-term (20-year) repayment of the accepted loan amount if approved for funding. 

Recommendation: Adoption of Authorizing Resolution. 

 

218



RESOLUTION BY GOVERNING BODY OF APPLICANT 

WHEREAS, The Federal Clean Water Act Amendments of 1987 and the North Carolina the Water 
Infrastructure Act of 2005 (NCGS 159G) have authorized the making of loans and grants 
to aid eligible units of government in financing the cost of rehabilitation and construction 
of wastewater collection systems, and 

WHEREAS, The Town of Winterville has need for and intends to construct improvements to the 
existing wastewater collection system described as Pump Stations Rehabilitation 2020, 
and 

WHEREAS, The Town of Winterville intends to request state loan and grant assistance for the project, 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF WINTERVILLE: 

That the Town of Winterville, the Applicant, will arrange financing for all remaining costs 
of the project, if approved for a State loan/grant award. 

That the Applicant will adopt and place into effect on or before completion of the project 
a schedule of fees and charges and other available funds which will provide adequate 
funds for proper operation, maintenance, and administration of the system and the 
repayment of all principal and interest on the debt. 

That the governing body of the Applicant agrees to include in the loan agreement a 
provision authorizing the State Treasurer, upon failure of the Town of Winterville to make 
scheduled repayment of the loan, to withhold from the Town of Winterville any State 
funds that would otherwise be distributed to the local government unit in an amount 
sufficient to pay all sums then due and payable to the State as a repayment of the loan. 

That the Applicant will provide for efficient operation and maintenance of the project on 
completion of construction thereof. 

That Terri Parker, Town Manager, the Authorized Official, and successors so titled, is 
hereby authorized to execute and file an application on behalf of the Applicant with the 
State of North Carolina for a loan/grant to aid in the construction of the project described 
above. 

That the Authorized Official, and successors so titled, is hereby authorized and directed 
to furnish such information as the appropriate State agency may request in connection 
with such application or the project:  to make the assurances as contained above; and to 
execute such other documents as may be required in connection with the application. 

That the Applicant has substantially complied or will substantially comply with all Federal, 
State, and local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances applicable to the project and to 
Federal and State grants and loans pertaining thereto. 

Adopted this the 8th day of April, 2019 at Winterville, North Carolina. 

 
 
 
  

(Signature of Chief Executive Officer) 
 
 
 Mayor  

(Title)  

219



 

CERTIFICATION BY RECORDING OFFICER 

 

The undersigned duly qualified and Town Clerk of the Town of Winterville does hereby certify: That the 

above/attached resolution is a true and correct copy of the resolution authorizing the filing of an 

application with the State of North Carolina, as regularly adopted at a legally convened meeting of the 

Winterville Town Council duly held on the 8th day of April, 2019; and, further, that such resolution has 

been fully recorded in the journal of proceedings and records in my office.  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I 

have hereunto set my hand this ________ day of _______________, 2019. 

 
 
 
  

(Signature of Recording Officer) 
 
 
 Town Clerk  

(Title of Recording Officer) 

220



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 
 

Meeting Date: April 8, 2019 

Presenter: Travis Welborn, Public Works 

Director 

 

Item Section: New Business 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: 2019 Street Improvements Project Engineering Contract. 

Action Requested: Approval of Contract . 

Attachments: Engineering Proposal. 

Prepared By: Travis Welborn, Public Works Director Date: 3/27/2019 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

 TC 03/27/2019  FD        TM 04/03/2019  Final 04/03/2019 

Supporting Documentation 

The Town recently completed its 2017 Street Improvements Project. This was the largest street improvements 

project that has been completed in many years in the Town, and the project spanned two fiscal years. Funds 

from the current fiscal year had to be utilized in order to complete some emergency repairs to streets such as 

Vernon Avenue that needed immediate attention. Therefore the current fiscal year’s project has not been started 

as the availability of funds was unknown until the prior project was completed. Now that that project has been 

completed staff has prioritized several small projects based on the available funds. There are six (6) streets that 

staff will try to address with this project, including Dare Court, Stillwood Drive, Railroad Street, Jessica Drive, 

Cedar Ridge Drive, and Preston Trails Drive. With the exception of Dare Court, only small sections of each of 

these streets have issues that need to be repaired, however the areas generate many complaints to staff from 

residents. Due to the small fee and in order to begin addressing these issues prior to the end of the fiscal year 

staff requests to contract with Ark Consulting Group to generate plans and specifications. Ark is a local vendor 

who has also completed the engineering for the Towns two previous street improvements project with great 

success as well as the Downtown Parking Improvements Project. 

 

 

 

Budgetary Impact: All engineering for this project will be paid for out of the Powell Bill account. The Engineering 

line item has sufficient funds to cover the cost of the Engineering contract. 

Recommendation:  Approval of Contract with Ark Consulting Group. 

 

221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 
 

Meeting Date: April 8, 2019 

Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

 

Item Section: New Business 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: 2019 NCLM Business Meeting - Elect Voting and Alternate Voting Delegates. 

Action Requested: Elect Voting and Alternate Voting Delegates. 

Attachment: N/A. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 3/29/2019 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

 TC 03/29/2019  FD        TM 04/03/2019  Final 04/03/2019 

Supporting Documentation 

 

2019 Annual Conference - Hickory, NC 

NCLM Business Meeting 

Thursday, May 16, 2019 4:00 pm – 5:00 pm 

Voting Delegate and Alternate Voting Delegate 

 

Each city or town that registers for CityVision 2019 will be able to attend and cast votes at the annual business 

meeting scheduled during the conference. Once a completed registration is received for a municipality, the clerk 

will receive an electronic form requesting the name of the Authorized Voting Delegate who will cast votes on 

behalf of the municipality. 

 

 

 

Budgetary Impact: N/A/ 

Recommendation: Elect Voting and Alternate Voting Delegates/ 

 

236



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 
 

Meeting Date: April 8, 2019 

Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

 

Item Section: New Business 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: General Records Retention and Disposition. 

Action Requested: Approve Resolution. 

Attachment: Resolution and Local Standards Series List. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 3/29/2019 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

 TC: 3/29/2019  FD:   TM: 4/3/2019  Final: 4/3/2019 

Supporting Documentation 

The March 2019 updates to the North Carolina Local Government Records Retention Schedules have been 
prepared by the Department of Natural and Cultural Resources. 

The universal update covering General Records is taking the form of a General Local Records Retention 
Schedule. When adopted, it supersedes the following standards on all local schedules published prior to 
March 1, 2019: 

 •Administration and Management Records 

 •Budget, Fiscal, and Payroll Records 

 •Geographic Information System (GIS) Records 

 •Information Technology Records 

 •Legal Records 

 •Personnel Records 

 •Public Relations Records 

 •Risk Management Records 

 •Workforce Development Records 

To adopt this schedule, the governing board should take action in a regular open meeting. The signature 
page to the schedule should then be signed by the Clerk and Mayor. 

Beginning in 2019, all local records retention schedules will update on an annual basis. These annual 
updates will include any updates to the General Records Standards as well as any scheduled updates to the 
Program Records Standards. Updating the schedules in this fashion will create greater consistency among 
government agencies and will allow agencies with older schedules to use the most current retention periods 
for their general office records, even if their program records standards are not updated simultaneously. All 
subsequent updates will be issued on January 1 of each year. 

 

Budgetary Impact: N/A. 

Recommendation: Town Staff recommends approval of Resolution. 

 

237



Clerk

Mayor

Town of Winterville

238



2019 LOCAL GOVERNMENT AGENCIES 
GENERAL RECORDS RETENTION AND DISPOSITION SCHEDULE 

Records Series 

 

Standard 1: Administration and Management Records 
Abstracts of Municipal Elections 
Accreditation Records 
Administrative Directives, Regulations, and Rules 
Agenda and Meeting Packets 
Applications for Appointment 
Appointment Reports 
Audio and Video Recordings of Meetings 
Audits: Performance 
Blueprints and Specifications 
Bonds 
Bulletins 
Business Certification Records 
Business Development Subject File 
Calendars of Events and Appointments 
Census Project Records 
Charter Records 
Citizen Comments, Complaints, Petitions, and Service Requests 
Citizen Rebate Program Records 
Citizen Surveys 
Collected Data 
Comprehensive Plan 
Correspondence and Memoranda 
Customer Call Center Recordings 
Equipment and Vehicle Maintenance, Repair, and Inspection Records 
Equipment and Vehicle Reference Records 
Equipment, Facility, and Vehicle Usage Records 
Facility Maintenance, Repair, and Inspection Records 
Forms and Templates 
Governing and Advisory Body Member Files 
Grant Proposals 
Grants 
History Records (Agency and Employees) 
Improper Conduct Investigations 
Indices 
Interagency Programs 
Inventories 
Legislation and Regulatory Records 

239



Logistics Materials 
Mail: Undeliverable/Returned 
Mailing and Distribution Records 
Membership Records 
Minutes of Public Bodies 
Minutes (Staff Meetings) 
Miscellaneous (Non-Building) Applications, Licenses, and Permits 
Notices of Public Meetings 
Office Security Records 
Ordinances 
Pest Control 
Policies and Procedures 
Poll List/Registration List/Roster/Authorization to Vote (ATV) 
Price Quotations 
Proclamations and Orders 
Projects 
Property Management Records 
Rate and Fee Schedules 
Records Management 
Reference (Reading) File 
Reports and Studies 
Requests for Information 
Requests for Proposals (RFP) 
Resolutions 
Surplus Property 
Tracking Materials 
Travel Requests 
Vehicle Registration Cards 
Work Orders 

Standard 2: Budget, Fiscal, and Payroll Records 
Accounts Payable 
Accounts Receivable 
Accounts Uncollectable 
Annual Budget 
Arbitrage Records 
Audits: Financial 
Authorization Forms 
Bank Statements and Reconciliations 
Bids for Disposal of Property 
Bids for Purchase 
Bond Closing Records 
Bond Register 
Bonds, Notes, and Coupons 
Budget Administration Records 

240



Budget Execution Records 
Budget Reports 
Budget Requests and Working Papers 
Budget Resolutions and Ordinances 
Cost Allocation Plans 
Credit/Debit/Procurement Card Records 
Donations and Solicitations 
Electronic Funds Transfers (EFT) 
Escheats and Unclaimed Property 
Financial Journals and Ledgers 
Financial Reports 
Government Employees Retirement System Monthly Reports 
Grants: Financial 
Investments 
Loan Records 
Local Government Commission Financial Statements 
Longevity Pay 
Payment Card Data 
Payroll and Earnings Records 
Payroll Deduction Records 
Powell Bill Records 
Purchase Orders 
Qualified Products Lists (QPL) 
Requisitions 
Scholarship Records 
Shift Premium Pay 
Statements of Back Pay 
Tax Forms 
Tax Returns 
Time Sheets, Cards, and Attendance Records 
Travel Reimbursements 
Vendors 

Standard 3: Geographic Information System (GIS) Records 
Geographic Information System (GIS) Core Data 
Geographic Information System (GIS) Data Documentation (Metadata) 
Geographic Information System (GIS) Internal Standards and Procedures 
Geographic Information System (GIS) Monitoring Records 
Geographic Information System (GIS) Operational Records 
Geographic Information System (GIS) Project Records 
Layers: Address Points 
Layers: Corporate Limits 
Layers: Extraterritorial Jurisdictions 
Layers: Orthoimagery 
Layers: Street Centerline 

241



Mapping Project Records 
Maps: Parcel 
Maps: Parks 
Maps: All Other 

Standard 4: Information Technology (IT) Records 
Audits: IT Systems 
Computer and Network Usage Records 
Data Documentation Records 
Data Migration Records 
Data Warehouses 
Digitization and Scanning Records 
Electronic Records Policies and Procedures 
Information Technology Assistance Records 
Network and System Security Records 
Network Diagrams 
Project Documentation 
Software License and Copyright Provisions Records 
System Access Records 
System Documentation Records 
System Maintenance Records: Hardware Repair or Service 
System Maintenance Records: Records Backups 
Technical Program Documentation 
Voice over Internet Protocol (VoIP) Records 
Web Management and Operations Records: Structure 

Standard 5: Legal Records 
Affidavits of Publication 
Authentications 
Civil Rights Case Records 
Civil Rights Records 
Condemnation Records 
Conflict of Interest and Conflict of Commitment Disclosure Statements 
Contracts, Leases, and Agreements 
Declaratory Rulings 
Delegation of Authority Records 
Easements and Right-of-Way Agreements 
Encroachments 
Land Ownership Records 
Legal Correspondence 
Legal Opinions 
Legal Review Records 
Litigation Case Records 
Oaths of Office 
Permissions 

242



Pre-Trial Release Program Records 
Reasonable Accommodations 
Release Forms 
Vehicle Titles 

Standard 6: Personnel Records 
Abolished Positions 
Administrative Investigations 
Applications for Employment 
Apprenticeship Program Records 
Aptitude and Skills Testing Records 
Asbestos Training 
Benefits Records 
Bloodborne Pathogen Training 
Certification and Qualification Records 
Directories, Rosters, or Indices 
Disability Salary Continuation Claims 
Disciplinary Actions 
Dual Employment 
Educational Leave and Reimbursement 
Eligibility Records 
Employee Assistance Programs 
Employment Selection Records 
Exit Interview Records 
Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA) Records 
Grievances 
Hazardous Materials Training Records 
Internship Program 
Law Enforcement Training 
Leave Records 
Medical Records 
Military Leave 
Performance Reviews 
Personnel Action Notices 
Personnel Records (Official Copy) 
Personnel Records (Supervisor Copy) 
Policies and Procedures (Personnel) 
Polygraph Records 
Position Classification, Control, and History 
Position Descriptions 
Position Evaluations 
Recruitment Records 
Retirement Records 
Seasonal and Contract Worker Records 
Secondary Employment 

243



Service Awards and Commendations 
Suggestions and Surveys 
Training and Educational Records 
Unemployment Compensation Claims 
Unemployment Compensation Reports 
Unemployment Insurance 
Verification of Employment Records 
Volunteer Records 
Work Schedules and Assignments 
Workers’ Compensation Program Administration 
Workers’ Compensation Program Claims 

Standard 7: Public Relations Records 
Agency Publications 
Audio-Visual Recordings 
Community Awards 
Conferences and Workshops 
Educational Materials 
Fund Drive and Event Records 
Invitations 
Media File 
Popular Annual Finance Report 
Public Hearings 
Public Records Requests 
Publicity Records 
Social Media 
Speeches 
Website (Electronic) 

Standard 8: Risk Management Records 
Accident/Incident Reports (Customer and Employee) 
Asbestos Management Plan 
Declarations and Terminations of States of Emergency 
Disaster and Emergency Management Plans 
Disaster Recovery 
Emergency Drills and Equipment Records 
Employee Security Records 
Fire, Health, and Safety Records 
Fuel Oil Storage Tank Records 
Hazardous Materials Management 
Insurance Policies 
Loss Control Inspection Reports 
Lost, Stolen, or Damaged Property Reports 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) 
Safety Data Sheets 

244



Standard 9: Workforce Development Records 
Audit/Audit Resolutions 
Local Area Job Training Plan Records 
Participant Records 
 

245


	0-Final Agenda 04082019
	7-1-Proclamation-SCHS 2019 Basketballv2
	7-2-Proclamation-PCC 2019 Basketballv2
	8-1-a-Agenda Abstract-Brookstone Ph 1 CUD Amendmentv2
	8-1-b-BSN Rezoning App Brick Reqrmt 19-03-04
	8-1-c-Brookstone Ph 1 Map
	8-1-d-Original CUD-01-010906  
	8-1-e-Labels of Adjacent Property Owners-Brookstone Ph1 CUD Amend
	9-1-a-Public Comment-Gary Whitehurst
	10-1-a-Agenda Abstract-04082019-Regular Meeting Minutesv2
	10-1-b-Regular Meeting Minutes 02112019 DRAFT Final
	10-1-c-Electric Rate Workshop Minutes 02192019 DRAFT Final
	10-1-d-Regular Meeting Minutes 03112019 DRAFT Final
	10-2-a-Agenda Abstract-Ange Plaza Lot 22 Annexv2
	10-2-b-Ange Plaza Lot 22 Certificate of Sufficiency
	10-2-c-Ange Plaza Lot 22 Annex Map
	10-2-d-Ange Plaza Lot 22 Legal Description
	10-3-a-Police 2019 Budget expentiture requestv2
	10-3-b-Consent-Police Purchases
	10-3-c-Consent-Police Contracts
	10-4-a-Agenda Abstract-Surplus 2014 Fire Enginev2
	10-4-b-Support Info.
	10-5-a-Agenda Abstract-Budget Amendment 18-19-4v2
	10-5-b-Budget Amendment 2018-2019-4
	10-6-a-Abstract - TM Performance Review - 04082019
	11-1-a-Agenda Abstract-20190326-Sewer Rehab Eng-Rivers Amendv2
	11-1-b-Engineering Services Agreement - Rivers-Sewer Rehab - Amend No 1
	11-2-a-Agenda Abstract-20190326-SRF Loan App Resolution-PS Rehabv2
	11-2-b-Resolution 04082019 19-R-041-SRF Loan App
	11-3-a-Agenda Abstract-Ark Consulting Contractv2
	11-3-b-Engagement Letter scan
	11-4-a-Agenda Abstract-04082019-CityVision Delegatesv2
	11-5-a-Agenda Abstract-04082019-Records Retentionv2
	11-5-b-04082019 19-R-042 General Record Retention
	11-5-c-2019 Local Standards Series List
	Standard 1: Administration and Management Records
	Standard 2: Budget, Fiscal, and Payroll Records
	Standard 3: Geographic Information System (GIS) Records
	Standard 4: Information Technology (IT) Records
	Standard 5: Legal Records
	Standard 6: Personnel Records
	Standard 7: Public Relations Records
	Standard 8: Risk Management Records
	Standard 9: Workforce Development Records




